
AGENDA 
Augusta Charter Township 

Regular Planning Commission Meeting 

NEW LOCATION 

***Lincoln Senior Center*** 
8970 Whittaker Road 

(West entrance of Brick Elementary) 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

June 21, 2023 
6:30 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call and Recognition of Visitors –Yurk, Buxton, Woolf, Hall, Spence, 

Hamill, Rawlins 

4. Approval of Agenda 

5. Approval of Minutes 

a. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes from May 17, 2023 Regular 

Meeting  

6. Public Hearings  

a. RZ-23-01 Redwood USA, LLC – 7171 Willis Road (T-20-04-300-007) – 
request to rezone the subject property from AR, Agriculture Residential to 
MR, Multiple Family Residential. 

7. Business Items  

a. RZ-23-01 Redwood USA, LLC – 7171 Willis Road (T-20-04-300-007) – 
request to rezone the subject property from AR, Agriculture Residential to 
MR, Multiple Family Residential. 

8. Public Comment 

9. Communications  

10. Adjournment 



Draft 
AGENDA 

Augusta Charter Township 
Regular Planning Commission Meeting 

8970 Whittaker Road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

May17, 2023 
6:30 PM 

 
1. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Yurk at 6:33 PM. 
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
Chair Yurk led Pledge. 
 

3. Roll Call and Recognition of Visitors  
In Attendance:  Robert Yurk, David Hall, Linda Spence, Dan Woolf and Richard Hamill. 
Absent: Paul Rawlins, Janet Buxton. Additionally, Planner Laura Kreps, Engineer Dean 
Keffer, Attorney Victor Lillich (arrived at 7:00P PM) and members of the public 
attended. 

 
4. Approval of Agenda 

Chair Yurk  made the motion to approve agenda with the modification of moving 7.c 
PUD 23-01, Mitchel’s Storage, Conceptual PUD Plan  before  7.1 Closed Session, support 
by Hall. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
5. Approval of Minutes 

Spence made the motion to approve minutes from March 15, 2023 Planning Commission 
Meeting, support by Hamill.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
      6.   Public Hearings 

a. None 
 
     7.    Business Items 

a.  Closed Session – Receipt of written attorney-client privilege 
communication from Township Attorney which is exempt from disclosure 
under Section 13(1)(g) of the Freedom of Information Act.  
 
Chiar Yurk motioned to go into closed session supported by Spence. Closed session began at 
8:09.  Hamill motioned to reopen meeting supported by Woolf.  Meeting reopened at 8:32. 
 
b.  SP 21-03, Railsplitter II, Preliminary Site Plan, Large-Scale Solar Facility 
 
Chair Yurk made the motion to accept the resolution to approve the Preliminary Site Plan 
supported by Hall.  Motion carried unanimously.  (Signed resolution attached.) 
 
c.  PUD 23-01, Mitchel’s Storage, Conceptual PUD Plan, Expansion of Self-Storage Facility 
 
 



Petitioner Mr. Kalimai along with his representitives Mr. Kubiske and Mr. Gormley 
presented the Conceptual PUD Plan.  The PC had questions and concerns that were 
discussed.  Members of the audience were allowed a brief comment. Residents Rodney 

Taylor (Talladay Rd.), William Case (Talladay Rd.) Howard Smallwood (Rawsonville 

Rd.) and Mark Kalimai (Rawsonville Rd.) commented on the development.  After much 
discussion and review the PC decided more information was required. Spence motioned to 

postpone supported by Hamill. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

     8.    Public Comment 
Rodney Taylor (Talladay), Howard Smallwood (Rawsonville) voiced concerns with 
Mitchel’s Storage.  Cath Howard inquired on the status the wetland development. 

 
     9.    Communications 

Trustee Hall reported that over 2,000 tires were collected for April tire collection and new 
speed signs have gone up. 

. 
     10.  Adjournment 

Hamill motioned to adjourn supported by Spence. Motion carried unanimously. Meeting 
was closed at 9:04 PM. 



 

 
  
 Date: June 13, 2023 

 

 
 

Rezoning 
For 

Augusta Charter Township, Michigan 

 
 
 

 
Applicant: Redwood USA. LLC 
 
Project Name: Redwood 
 
Location: 7171 Willis Road (T-20-04-300-007) 
  
Zoning: AR, Agricultural Residential 
 
Action Requested: Rezoning to MR, Multiple-Family Residential 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted in review.   
 
 
SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning of the 33.17-acre property located at 7171 Willis Road from the 
current AR, Agricultural Residential zoning to MR, Multiple-Family Residential in order to develop a 
Redwood Apartment neighborhood.  The current property has been most recently utilized as a golf driving 
range located immediately east of Lincoln High School at the northeast quadrant of Willis and Hitchingham 
Roads. 
 
  

 
 
 



Redwood - Rezoning 
June 13, 2023 

2 

 
Figure 1. Aerial Photo 

 
  
Items to be Addressed:  None 

 
NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAND USE 

 
Areas surrounding the subject area are primarily large lot agricultural and residential uses to the north, 
west, and south.  East of the subject area is the Lincoln Schools campus.  The subject site and the 
surrounding area are all zoned AR, Agriculture Residential. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Willis Road 

SITE 



Redwood - Rezoning 
June 13, 2023 

3 

Current Zoning Map 

 
 
 
 
Items to be addressed:  None. 

 
MASTER PLAN 

 
The Augusta Township Master Plan and Future Land Use Map depict the site and the property to the south 
across Willis Road as Multiple Family Residential.  The Master plan is the guiding document used by the 
Township in making zoning decisions, and should coincide with modifications being made to the Zoning 
Ordinance and Map.  The Multiple Family Residential future land use classification allows for the 
development of higher density residential development allowing two (2) or more units per structure with 
an overall density not to exceed six (6) dwelling units per acre.  These areas are required to be located 
within the Urban Service Areas.  See portion of Future Land Use Map on following page: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Redwood - Rezoning 
June 13, 2023 

4 

Future Land Use Map 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Items to be Addressed: None. 

 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL 

 
The future land use map depicts the subject area as Multiple Family Residential. 
 
A rezoning of the subject area to Multiple Family Residential would allow for up to six (6) dwelling units 
per acre to be developed.  Residential and governmental uses are listed as permitted uses in the MR 
zoning district.  Whereas the following additional uses are listed as requiring special land use approval: 
 

• Group day care home 

• Childcare center 

• Church 

• Golf course 

• Funeral home 

• Professional Office 

• Private schools 

• Community swimming pool 

• Library, museum or similar non-commercial cultural facilities. 
 
The applicant is not required to submit a development proposal as part of the rezoning request.  However, 
we note the applicant is considering development of a single-story, lower density multi-family residential 
use at this location. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None. 
 



Redwood - Rezoning 
June 13, 2023 

5 

TRAFFIC IMPACT AND SITE ACCESS 
 
The proposed rezoning of the subject area to MR will not have an impact on the current traffic patterns 
associated with this portion of the Township.  Specific traffic impacts and site access will be evaluated 
during site plan review. 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None.  

 
ESSENTIAL FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

 
All of the properties in the subject area are located within an Urban Service Area for expansion of utilities. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 

 
REZONING FACTORS 

 
The Zoning Ordinance identifies seven (7) factors that the Planning Commission should evaluate when 
considering a rezoning petition (Section 16.4.B.).  We note that most of these issues are addressed in the 
body of this analysis; however we will provide the following brief commentary for reference. 
 
1. Whether the rezoning is consistent with the policies and uses proposed for that area in the 

Township’s Master Land Use Plan. 
 
The proposed rezoning of the subject area is in compliance with the objectives of the Augusta 
Charter Township Master Plan.   

 
2. Whether all of the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning would be compatible with other 

zones and uses in the surrounding area. 
 
The rezoning of this property to the MR, Multiple Family Residential zoning designation is in 
general compliance with the Master Plan and Future Land Use Map.  See the Master Plan 
portion of this report. 
 

3. Whether any public services and facilities would be significantly adversely impacted by a 
development or use allowed under the requested rezoning. 
 
The site plan review process will ensure that future development in this area is served by 
adequate services.   

 
4. Whether the uses allowed under the proposed rezoning would be equally or better suited to the 

area than uses allowed under the current zoning of the land. 
 
The subject property was reclassified as Multiple Family in the recent adoption of the Township’s 
updated Master Plan.  The property is located adjacent to the Lincoln School campus and is within 
one of the Township’s three (3) Urban Service areas where public utilities are available for 
development.  This area of the Township has been part of an Urban Service area for a number of 
years and is where more intense land uses are planned. 



Redwood - Rezoning 
June 13, 2023 

6 

 
5. Whether the condition and/or value of property in the Township or in adjacent civil divisions would 

be significantly adversely impacted by a development or use allowed under the requested 
rezoning. 

 
The condition and/or value of property will not be impacted by the proposed rezoning to MR. 

 
6. Whether or not the requested zoning change is justified by a change in conditions since the original 

ordinance was adopted or by an error in the original ordinance. 
 

The adoption of the 2023 Master Plan demonstrates a higher intensity use for this property based 
on its location within an urban service district and proximity to the Lincoln School campus. 

 
7. Whether precedents might result from approval or denial of the petition, and the possible effects 

of such precedents. 
 

We are not aware of any precedents that would be instituted by the proposed rezoning of the 
subject area to MR. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Based upon the comments of this analysis, we recommend approval of the proposed rezoning of the 
property located at 7171 Willis Road (T-20-04-300-007) from AR, Agricultural Residential to MR, Multiple 
Family Residential.  Our findings of fact include: 

1. Compatibility of the proposed MR zoning and the adjacent properties  

2. Proposed rezoning is in compliance with Master Plan Future Land Use Map. 

 

 
 
#144-2300 
 
cc: Emily Engelhart via eenglehart@byredwood.com  
 Board of Trustees 
 Planning Commission 
 OHM 
  

 

mailto:eenglehart@byredwood.com





















